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The Georgetown Market faces north at 3276 M St., N.W., between’ Q@ and
West Market Sts., just north of the C&0 Canal. The 9,920 sq. ft. lotwadg!])
once part of a larger site reduced when the building of the canal in 1831
separated the lower third of the lot from the market property. 2,700 sq. ft.
of this parcel south of the canal are still in District ownership and could
be used for future market parking., The one-story brick market_erected in
18§§, apparently on the fieldstone foundation of the 1796 market, orlglnally
since extended to 199,75' (11 bays). The building is about 25' high at the
eaves and 30' at the north-south ridge of the wood-frame tin-covered low
gable roof. - -

The M St., facade of this functional arcaded market house consists of a
recessed round-arched central door about 6' wide and 16' high flanked on
e;ther side by a round-arched window (formerly a door) of similar height and
width, but closed in at the base.  Ornamental scrolls which originally deco-
rated the fanlights over the doors have been replaced by plain glass. The
arches are framed by bonded-brick circumscribed by simple molded brick archi-
volts curving into a horizontal molded brick string course which spans the
elevation at the spring line of the arches. The common bond wall has a row

of headers every 8 courses and rises to an elaborate stamped-tin cornice with

decoratlve brackets in the Italianate style. This dentllled and bracketed
flat bracketed and dentilled cornice. Originally the word MARKET appeared in
this central block above the door. Small pediments facing east and west are
supported by paired brackets at either end. The main facade is painted white
with green trim. )

The 11 bays of the east and west facades are similar to those on M St,,
but are arranged in series of two windows and a door, each recessed three
inches and separated from the adjoining bay by a brick pilaster about three
feet wide which rises from the foundation and merges into a projecting brick
surface which runs the length of the sides below the cornice., The iron grill
over the windows and doors date from 1942, In the south, rear wall a central
shacklike entrance to the basement is flanked by two arched windows.

One of the most architecturally distinguished elements of the interior
is the basement, obviously much older than the market above., It is probably
part of the 1796 market or it may have been constructed when the canal was
built in 1831, The foundation walls are about 4' thick and rise about 15' to
wooden joists which support the market floor, Running directly down the cen-
ter of the basement is a 2' thick stone wall punctuated by 14 stone and brick
arches. On either side of this central arched wall, the basement is divided
into storerooms by transverse walls. Several of these walls have failed due
to settlement but no serious damage to the building has occurred, The allege
"slave auction block" is located at the center of the east wall.

The first floor, containing an area of about 7200 sgq. ft., is an open
space with approx. 30' high ceilings. This space has been partially parti-
tioned by temporary storage compartments.

The market's age and inadequate maintenance in recent years has led to
the failure of some structural elements, termite damage to the floor and
weather damage to the roof. The building is basically in sound structural
condition, however, and could readily be restored to market use.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANGCE

The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the Georgetown Market
a Category II Landmark of importance which contributes significantly to the
cultural heritage and visual beauty of the District of Columbia. Built in
1865 on the site of an early 1795 market (the first public market of record
in D.C.), the Georgetown market is perhaps the finest extant example of
Georgetown's long history of commercial activity., Restoration of the market
to its original use as part of the plan for reconstructing facilities along
the C&0 Canal would do much to upgrade this long-blighted area of Georgetowny}
The history of the market site goes back to the Revolutionary period
when a butcher's market occupied part of the present property, This market
was later replaced by the Georgetown debtor's jail. In 1795 the jail was
removed to complete a new frame market house. Because of the town's growth,
the frame market was demolished a year later, and a larger, more substantial
market was constructed from voluntary contributions on an expanded site.
The entire property was not finally acquired by the Georgetown Corporation
from Adam King and John Mitchell until 1803. One of the stipulations of
King's deed was that the site was "for the use of the market aforesaid, for-
ever, and for no other use, interest or purpose whatsoever,,."
By the end of the Civil War, this 1796 market, which had been enlarged
several times during the heyday of the C&0 Canal, was so dglapidated that it
was razed. The present market was erected in 1865, The architect is un-
known and no plans of the building exist. The Georgetown Corporation opera-
ted the market until Georgetown was incorporated into the District of Columbia
in 1871. The market was then administered by the District Government. Stalls
of butchers, fish mongers and dairy farmers requiring refrigeration were
located against the interior walls of the market. Butter stalls generally
stood in the center. Produce was sold at outside stands.
In 1935, when the District Commissioners wanted to get out of the mar-
ket business, they were restrained by the provisions of King's deed. Hoping
to nullify these restrictions by renting the building to private firms, the
Commissioners first leased the building to a private meat market and then in
1945 to Southern Distributors Inc., a wholesale automobile supply parts dis-
tributor which has used the building for non-market purposes for 25 years.
On Sept. 11, 1966, the United States Congress passed Legislation direcH
ting the District to preserve the building as an historic landmark, to oper-
gte and maintain it as a public market, and to make a small portion of it
available to the National Park Service for the CEQ Canal Museum. Congress
has not yet appropriated the funds necessary to restore the market.
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